# WORMHELL ANTHOLOGY



Version One

# Table of Contents

☑ Entries in the table of contents and bits of text that looks like this are clickable

Table of Contents	2
A Brief State of the World	4
The Kosmos	4
The Superway	4
The Supremacy	4
The Оуднүухн	5
Cabastis	5
Omnidialect	5
The Technarche	5
Magnatism	6
Magn and Magi	6
Descent Into Madness	8
Cabastis as a Topic	8
Technarche Mechanosi	8
Archon Vicinage - Mechano Limbo	9
Asteroid Belts	9
Debris Belt - Mechano Lust	10
Ore Belt - Mechano Gluttony	10
Mist Fields	10
Electronic Clouds - Mechano Greed	10
Jötunn - Mechano Wrath	11
Mur - Mechano Heresy	11

Construction of Mur	11
Accretion Disk - Mechano Violence	12
Horizon - Mechano Fraud	12
Cabastis' Eye - Mechano Treachery	13
An Explanation of Many Assorted Things	14
Magnchron	14
Omnichron	15
How to Say a Date in Omnichron	15
Cabastis K-2	16
Formation of Puteus $\Delta$	16
Magnate, the Fall of a Civilization	18
Origin of the Term Called Magnate	18
Origin of the Being Called Magnate	19
<b>Glossary of Definitions</b>	20
Civilization Classes	20
Оудмүүхн Terms	20
Supremacy Terms	21
Miscellaneous Terms	22

## A Brief State of the World

## The Kosmos

The Kosmos is the name for the used locations of the universe. It consists of two galaxies, which collided in kosmic year one alpha. Around the galaxies are many small clusters of solar systems or, in rare cases, a single wayward solar system. At the center of the Kosmos, there is a gigantic black hole, nearing the size of 35 million miles in diameter. After life formed, it found itself in a prime ground for exploration with all of the closely clustered and frequent solar systems. This allowed for disproportionately large numbers of oligheliocratic class civilizations.

## The Superway

Far more influential on the Kosmos than almost any other works (Notable exceptions include Mur, Omnidialect, and Cabastis K-2) is the Superway. The Superway is a vast network of faster-than-light speed connections between the solar systems of the Kosmos that first started appearing around kosmic year 100 million alpha, and were completely there by kosmic year 150 million alpha. The tunnels of the Superway provide instant travel when used (which can be easily done by simply knowing how to find the entrance ports), allowing the separate solar systems of the Kosmos to be intimately connected, and allow empires like the Supremacy or the Technarche to flourish. Most superway connections go from one solar system to the closest solar systems around it, but they have been known to be occasional, and inexplicable, connections to places like the inside the wall of Mur, the empty void of space far from any star, or the center of planets.

#### The Supremacy

The prime subcosmacratic class civilization in the Kosmos. The Supremacy is formed of a coalition of many of the more powerful oligheliocratic and myriheliocrate class civilizations in the Kosmos. The only civilizations that escape its rule are those that are too weak, usually monheliocratic class, or those too powerful for the Supremacy to contend with. The human species is the only species that is allowed to be in the top combine within the Supremacy, with a few scattered exceptions of individual persons who dedicated incredible amounts to the Supremacy. All other species who are under—and definitely under—the rule of the Supremacy are relegated to lower combines and are not allowed access to regapolis.

## The Оүднүүхн

A terrifying, civilization rending, hive mind of robots with the goal to turn the entire Kosmos into a simulation. They spread out in swarms, covering entire faces of planets with their reach. In an effort to gather data for the ennois, the sussement go out and interact with the rest of the Kosmos, especially intelligent life. Currently the ennois is inactive, except for a part hosting the case and another part dedicated to the hosting, informing, and interfacing of the sussement. They are thought to hail from a galaxy not in the Kosmos, because although they have faster than light communication, they cannot use the Superway.

## Cabastis

The Omnidialect word for the center of the Kosmos. It refers mostly to the supermassive black hole and the environment inside and directly around it, but it is also commonly used to refer to the lower combines of Supremacy society that tend to gather around the black hole. It is debatable whether it includes the Archon Vicinage and the combines within it. For more on the topic, go to the chapter Descent Into Madness.

## **Omnidialect**

The standard language of the Kosmos. Maintained through an impressive feat of temporal mindstem implantation, the language is instantly learnable to all those who wish to speak it simply by wanting to speak it. All species who can speak this language are able to speak it effectively with any other species who speaks Omnidialect.

## The Technarche

The name for both a powerful species of humanoids and a true bicosmocratic class civilization. Unusually little is known about the Technarche. Some concrete details known to the average scholar in the Kosmos, which was a sort of elongated and

slightly bony looking human, ten feet in height. The Technarche extended, for most of its existence, across the entirety of the Kosmos. All records from
Technarchemekkane (and, strangely, their corpses) stop appearing around kosmic year one billion alpha, the year when all Technarche buildings were abandoned nigh-completely and most Technarchmekkane vanished to an unknown location.

## Magnatism

The Technarchemakkane practiced what seemed to be, from the clues in ancient Technarche texts, a kind of paganism where the average being could 'descend' (as opposed to the far more common ascend) into a more powerful state by using knowledge of the powerful forces of the universe, and the power of those above them. One of the core themes of the religion are the inverting of the typical language structure for power, with the most powerful at the 'bottom' at the least at the 'top'. Another core theme is the worship of planets, stars, and black holes as sentient beings who have descended to a status of immense power.

#### Magn and Magi

Magnatism doctrine usually involves the mention of Magn, a force said to power all interactions in the universe. It is said that one can descend into gaining more Magn by gaining more knowledge of the universe that others would shun, and by using the lifeforce of others dedicated to them. Typically in practice this would involve a lower down Technarchemekkane taking bits of blood from his higher ups, but it is known to even have used the lives of thousands of Technarchemekkane at points. It is speculated that the reason for the disappearance of the vast majority of the Technarchemekkane could have been the completion of a Magnatism ritual on a scale before then unheard of, requiring the lives of most of the population to even finish.

Wielders of Magn, the more powerful of them called Magi in Technarche society, have been said to be able to do incredible things. They are spoken of as being able to slow, stop, or even reverse the flow of time in a small space; bring the, albeit recently, dead back to their lives; control the powers of gravity like the average person controls their eyes; fly through the void of space without a ship; or even see into the tapestry of time, possibly even knowing the future. Based on some of the stories of the Magi, there is a highly controversial theory about what might be one of the greatest wonders of the Kosmos. This theory is that because the Magi were able to fly through the void of space, and at speeds unheard of in the first hundred million kosmic years in iteration alpha, they might have been connected with the construction of the Superway, possibly even the ones to do so.

# Descent Into Madness

#### Cabastis as a Topic

A closer look at the wonders and horrors that make up the centerpiece of the Kosmos. The nine sections of Cabastis are often referred to as 'rings' in Omnidialect due to the fact that many of them look like circles when you take a 2D cross-section of them centered on Cabastis K-2.

Many members of polite Supremacy society would rather the term not exist, so it is often said that the Archon Vivinage is not part of Cabastis. In addition, knowledge of Accretion Disk, Horizon, and Cabastis' Eye is limited, largely sourced from Technarche texts, enough to make most believe that they are one ring. Debate is also lively whether the Debris Belt/Ore Belt and Electronic Cloud/Jötunn pairs should be considered one or two rings each, so that it is not uncommon for people to describe the number of rings ranging anywhere from four to nine.

#### Technarche Mechanosi

To those that have a scholarly interest in the past of Cabastis, it may be known that at points in the distant past some of the rings have been referred to by names that seem strangely out of touch, but frequently used. These names hail from some of the eldest texts which discuss the rings, recovered from Technarche ruins. Because these names are from the Technarche, when they are discussed they are referred to as 'mechanosi' (singular mechanos).

Although both Limbo and Lust mechanosi did not actually exist in the same way at the time of the Technarche, both of the rings were in fact recorded, and even described with accuracy and detail. Although largely a mystery, there are two common theories on how it was possible that the Technarche knew about the structure and strata of civilization so many billions of years into the future. The prevailing one—given that the Supremacy is not opposed to considering the secrets of Magn—is that the Magi, or servants thereof, still operate today, changing the ancient texts to make the Technarche seem more capable and powerful. The common logic for this is that the most or all powerful Magi were imprisoned in dynamfylak during a war with the Supremacy, and the rest of the upper Technarche went into hiding to gather power again.

Another theory, which is more supported by those with more intimate knowledge of the Technarche or Cabastis, is that of Magn. The theory states that the Magi of the Technarche were closer in communion with the primordial powers of the Kosmos, and indeed the entire universe, powers that the Magi called Magn. The Magi said that these were the powers of planets, the powers of stars, and even the powers of black holes. Supposedly the most powerful of the upper echelons of the Magi were able to use Magn to see far and wide into the tapestry of the time, learning about all the rings of Cabastis and their future histories.

## Archon Vicinage - Mechano Limbo

This ring is composed of those in the higher and middling combines of the Supremacy that for various reasons, such as their species, ancestral grievances, or crimes they have committed cannot reach into any higher combines and have essentially stagnated. The civilizations that exist here are what one who has traveled would describe the run of the mill suburbs of the Supremacy. This ring is largely only included in Cabastis for three reasons. One, the hate for the combines of Archon Vicinage from those who exist in lower or higher combines for their status as a representation of the opposite end of Supremacy Society. Two, for the existence of Magnatism, which is deeply connected with Cabastis and essentially scrubbed from the culture of the uppermost combines. Lastly, and possibly the most importantly, the Technarche named the ring as Mechanos Limbo, putting it firmly into the scholarly definition of Cabastis.

## Asteroid Belts

The eighth and seventh rings of Cabastis are the most two similar rings out of all of them, and are typically grouped together into a category called the Asteroid Belts. Even the people that live in them interact very frequently, having a lot of shared history between them. The two rings are even referred to as just a single ring in some explanations of Cabastis.

#### Debris Belt - Mechano Lust

A giant belt of previously mineral rich asteroids that surrounds the Ore Belt. Most of the asteroids here were emptied by the Supremacy to build the greater layers of Mur. The derelict rocks form the home of the lowest combine of the Supremacy. Unlike most of the other Supremacy territories, even Supremacy Abettors are rarely seen throughout the ring because of its extremely low value to the Supremacy. A corrupted web of society exists here where one can obtain nearly any debased desire they wish to. Black markets are not uncommon, and if you know how to navigate them can offer goods from the dimmest corners of the Kosmos.

#### Ore Belt - Mechano Gluttony

This ring is often called the gold mine of the empire for its vast exports of minerals and metals. It is a belt of asteroids about twice as thick as the Debris Belt, but is slowly becoming smaller as the asteroids on the outside of it are emptied and then added to the Debris Belt. Positively thick with Supremacy Abettors, even Archons

are not rare here for the sheer amounts of material goods that they can glut themselves on. Even the citizens of the lower combines of the Supremacy here live in tentative luxury with all of the cheap goods that are able to be acquired for cheap in the area.

#### Mist Fields

Similar to the Asteroid Belts, the Electronic Clouds and Jötunn belts are usually grouped together into one category, referred to as the Mist Fields. These inhabitants of both rings interact a little less than the two Asteroid Belt rings do, but it is still far more than those of rings like Mur and the Accretion Disk. Tentative alliances tend to form between the pirates of the Electronic Clouds and those who hunger for the flesh of the living on Jötunn.

#### Electronic Clouds - Mechano Greed

This ring is composed of millions and millions of asteroids and named for the finely crushed dust of tens of thousands of overconfident spaceships that permeates the ring and protects its inhabitants. Within the ring live some of the most cutthroat and greedy pirates in the Kosmos, evading detection in the near-unscannable

clouds of space dust. Any who try and enter to find the treasures that must be buried beneath the screen of unscannable dust find themselves ruthlessly sucked clean of everything that they own by the time the husk of their ship reaches the mists of Jötunn. The only people who can pass unharried through the clouds are High Archons, for the rage of the Supremacy that would be incurred upon the entirety of the ring if one of them was lost.

#### Jötunn - Mechano Wrath

This is the first ring of Cabastis in which one starts to uncover the ancient and unknowable that they cannot easily find outside of the rings. A wide expanse of swirling, yet quite thick, gasses and fog that resides on the outer edge of Mur. In certain areas closer to Mur it even starts to take on the consistency of liquid. Huge warships, those rare wielders of Magn, and beasts of increasing personal power prowl the mists of Jötunn, preying upon any weakness of the masses that have fallen to Jötunn from the Electronic Clouds. It is said in Magnatism that Jötunn is the crucible of the Kosmos for the magn-less to become something *more*.

#### Mur - Mechano Heresy

This ring is the great border machine that keeps the Kosmos from spinning into the vortex of Cabastis K-2. It is currently a giant capacitor which collects and then stores the gravity of Cabastis K-2 as energy, and then uses that to power the shielding devices. It also powers some of the most energy-hungry technology and magic in the Kosmos, including the dynamfylak, a prison that keeps the highest enemies of the Supremacy in statis, or as close as possible.

#### Construction of Mur

Mur was first constructed in the first couple thousand years of kosmic iteration alpha, by the Technarche. When it was finished for the first time, it was simply a relatively thin shell of separated plates that circled Cabastis K-2. These plates were never any thicker than half a mile, and usually were closer to 500 feet thick. Of varying areas, they all circled Cabastis K-2 and provided a huge energy shield that kept too much from falling into the black hole. Unlike the Mur of today however, there were large sections of the shield deliberately opened to keep increasing the mass of the Accretion Disk and Cabastis K-2. Near the last hundred or so years of kosmic iteration alpha, the shield was nearly entirely disabled by the Technarche, allowing huge masses of matter to enter Cabastis K-2. The shield was re-enabled around kosmic year 350 beta. Starting around kosmic year 50,000 beta, the Supremacy started construction on what would be a huge addition to Mur. By the end of it, Mur had almost 3 times as many plates in the network. In addition, projects like the Omnidialect and dynamfylak were added into the network. Shielding was then increased to a level where it was about a mile thick, and had a consistency so solid that an average human standing on it would take about an hour to sink up to chest level in the shield (speed of sinking does not increase with weight, but smaller particles like the gases of Jötunn do not sink into the shield), and covered all of the network.

## Accretion Disk - Mechano Violence

The speeding belt of destruction and violence that surrounds the event horizon of Cabastis K-2. Some of the most powerful and terrifying beings exist in the Maelstrom that is this ring. Knowledge of the primal forces of the universe is not uncommon in this ring, and the power to kill planets is even less rare. Worms that could swallow entire warships slam through the torrent of death, ripping apart anything that they can get to with a fury akin to the wielders of Magn who ride the floes of the ring alongside them.

## Horizon - Mechano Fraud

A sort of second limbo between the raging stream of death that is the Accretion Disk and the chilling expanse of Cabastis' Eye, Horizon manages to combine them both into a soul sucking horrorscape. Home to naught but the Magante and its followers, the Horizon *is* the event horizon of Cabstis K-2. The beings that exist here survive only through powers that transcend mortal understanding. The Technarche texts describe it as an eerie cosmic dichotomy, with Cabastis K-2 perpetually taking up most of the sight of anyone there, and the Accretion disk raging in a deadly inferno above their heads while they are rent into the smallest particles imaginable.

## Cabastis' Eye - Mechano Treachery

A juxtaposition to the rest of Cabastis, the interior of the black hole is a still, yet not calm place. It is a seemingly endless expanse of ice that few mortal hands can even dream of touching. The cosmic powers of Destruction reside within the frozen hellscape that manifests within this well. The only inhabitant is the Magi of the Macrolysis galaxy, the Magi that first brought the Technarche to cosmic power, that first and last Magi who will ever truly learn the meaning of Magn, Demnerus. Existence of this ring is hotly debated by the scholars who study the rings of Cabastis, given that none of them have or will ever glimpse the interior of Cabastis K-2, and even the existence of an interior space is debatable.

# An Explanation of Many Assorted Things

#### Magnchron

All civilizations use a method of keeping track of time, but the Technarche were the first in the Kosmos to perfect the method of doing it. The magnchron is a Technarche calendar device, capable of telling any who know how to read it the exact time. It is unknown where the magnchron originated from, but for many reasons it can be assumed that it was the Magi that created the device. The core of the device, a black orb, shows one symbol at a time. It is unknown what causes this to happen, as investigation into the core has revealed that the magnchron is only made up of white and black colored metal with no discernable mechanisms. The core usually shows one of 128 common symbols—which, if you only consider those symbols, are quite predictable-that indicate the day of the year. The outer and inner rings each contain the 16 Technarche digits, one of which is highlighted by the device at a time. The inner ring rotates on a once every minute cycle, which tells the reader the time in seconds. The symbol on the inner ring indicates minutes, and the outer hours. If a skilled reader uses the device, they can reveal a symbol on the backside of the core where the kosmic year is shown (from Technarche records, it is speculated that this indicator resets once every 1,073,741,824 years pass. It should be noted that the Technarche civilization disappeared in the last month of the first time this number reset). Symbols other than the common 128 can appear on the core at seemingly random times, but in fact happen to coincide with significant events happening in the Kosmos.

An artist's rendition of a Technarche magnchron



The magnchron core symbol for 128, frequently used to represent the 128 most common symbols that appear on the core of the magnchron



## Omnichron

The Supremacy calendar system is one of the best in the Kosmos. It is based on the regular patterns extracted from the magnchron by the Supremacy, which were then condensed into a mathematically calculable pattern. Unlike the magnchron, the omnichron has no special properties of lining up with important events, given its calculable property. All digits on the omnichron are in hexadecimal numbers rather than the symbols used by the magnchron, because of the preference of humans toward familiar numerical systems. The omnichron uses all of the timekeeping systems of the magnchron, with a few changes. The first of these is the split of the days into 16 days per month and 8 months. This change is especially conducive to hexadecimal, as one can simply look at the left or right digit for the months and days respectively. Another change is the kosmic year iteration. This is mostly a holdover from the time after the first magnchron year reset, when people instituted a simple system that the years were called 'beta' years rather than continuing to increment.

#### How to Say a Date in Omnichron

The system of magnchron year iteration counting was grandfathered into the omnichron, leaving the system calling the first iteration 'alpha' years, the second 'beta' years, and yet-to-occur third iteration 'delta' years. When referring to year iterations before alpha, they are called 'prime' iterations (ex: the iteration before alpha is alpha prime, the one before that beta prime, and then there is actually one before that, which is delta prime). Given the infrequency of the year iteration changing, most actual clocks don't have a mechanism for changing the year iteration inside them. When talking about a time in omnichron one can refer to it as [month][day], [hour]:[minute] of [kosmic year] [year indicator] (ex: A7, B:2 of

2d7be180 beta) when speaking about just the year, it is not uncommon to refer to the decimal equivalent of the year rather than the actual number (ex: kosmic year 763,093,376 beta).

An omnichron clock that displays the entire calendar with sections highlighted. The minutes are in red, the hours in orange, the day in green, the month in blue, the current kosmic year in purple, and the kosmic year iteration in pink.



## Cabastis K-2

The technical name for the supermassive black hole at the center of the Kosmos. Cabastis K-2 is formed from the combination of the supermassive black holes Cabastis K-1 and Puteus  $\Delta$ . This collision was instigated by a deliberate series of events that involved the lower ranks of Technarche rulership. The Macrolysis galaxy (home of Puteus  $\Delta$ ) was not on a collision course with the Descendant galaxy (home of Cabastis K-1) until somewhere around halfway through kosmic iteration alpha prime, at which point it suddenly started to go towards the Descendant galaxy. It is not known what caused this to happen, but the most common theory is that it had something to do with the Technarche. This is because the Technarche (who inhabited and ruled over the Macrolysis galaxy for the later three-quarters of kosmic iteration alpha prime) have no records of anyone or thing that changed the course of the galaxy, not even theories, which (given that the Magi can at least see into the tapestry of the present, if not the future) is very out of the ordinary for Technarchemekkane.

#### Formation of Puteus $\varDelta$

The formation of Puteus ∆ is not often looked into, but it almost—if not more—strange that the redirection of the Macrolysis galaxy. Technarche records are also mysteriously absent on the topic, but there is enough information to reconstruct a basic story. A unusually large Supergiant O class star, on the verge of

turning into a black hole, was discovered by the Technarchemekkane near the center of the Macrolysis galaxy about 1000 kosmic years before the Macrolysis galaxy was redirected. Records of this are largely absent from Technarche texts (however, it is thought that the group of people or person that removed these records is separate from the others mentioned in this section, because of the apparent difference between this method of removal, which left rare records, and the other ones, which were so thorough that not a single record has ever been found), with the star not being mentioned anywhere more than 50 kosmic years after discovery. From here, records are harder to piece together, but extrapolating from the absences in records, it appears that, 150 kosmic years after the discovery of the star, some being of incredibly immense power and also skilled in using Magn—referred to by scholars as the Puteus Mover—was able to change the orbit of all of the many planets orbiting the star and collide them into the star, forming a new black hole (Puteus  $\Delta$ ). Also not discussed in Technarche records, almost a third of the population simply vanished with no trace about 5 kosmic years after this new Puteus  $\Delta$  was formed.

Directly after this disappearance, solar system orbits start to deviate from predictions (this orbit data was recovered from the records of other Macrolysis civilizations) and proceed to crash into Puteus  $\Delta$  at high speeds, increasing its mass rapidly. Current speculation is that the Puteus Mover was a Magi who took the lifeforce of the disappearing Technarchemekkane and used it to gain enough control over Magn to move solar systems and collide them into Puteus  $\Delta$ . Eventually (about 800 kosmic years later), Puteus  $\Delta$  grew into a supermassive black hole with a diameter of 15 trillion miles. Only around 25 kosmic years after this was another unexplained, and massive, population drop of another third of the Technarche, who had reproduced at almost insane rates to fill the gap left 800 kosmic years before (leaving about the same amount of Technarchemekkane disappearing as before). Just 20 kosmic years later, the redirection of the galaxy occurred, but the records on and around that are so completely nonexistent that no one theory can explain it.

## Magnate, the Fall of a Civilization

Magnate is the name of the largest record mortal being to ever exist. The worm is so long that it would take light over an hour to travel from one end to the other if it was stretched out in a straight line, and so wide that it could eat smaller moons of planets. It resides in the ring of Cabastis called Horizon, circling just above the event horizon and using Magn to keep the gravitational forces from ripping it apart.

#### Origin of the Term Called Magnate

The term Magnate first started appearing in Magnatism (mostly for the lower classes or Technarchmekkane) near the early years of kosmic iteration alpha. In that context, it was referred to as a prophesied being that would eventually ascend when the tapestry of all time and the power of the Kosmos aligned to allow the more powerful Technarchmekkane to gain the power of all Technarche and descend into total godhood.

Records of the going-ons of lower Magnatism priesthood indicate that the Magi directed the priesthood to disseminate the story of Magnate to the higher classes, but results were dismal until part of the story was changed (it is theorized that originally the story was like the one with the change, but was moved away from that to align with the goals of the lower Technarchemekkane. It seemed that the change was indeed an integral part of the story) to fit the need of dissemination of the Magi's story. The Technarchemekkane who would descend was changed from the most powerful Technarchemekkane to one who was mystically chosen by the universe (note the use of universe rather than Kosmos here. The Kosmos is typically portrayed as a powerful sentient aligned with the Magi, but the universe is always a lifeless force) because they were the cosmic (again, not use of cosmic rather than kosmic) rightful wielder of the power. This change provoked a wide dissemination into the higher classes of Technarchemekkane, cementing the story as an integral part of Magnatism theology.

Somewhere of the course of kosmic iteration alpha, the story warped from the chosen one simply gaining the power of the Technarche to using the lives of all Technarchemekkane in a gigantic ritual to give them more Magn than any but the

Kosmos (note the kosmos *using Magn*). By the end of kosmic iteration alpha, this story was one of the core beliefs of all Technarchmekkane.

#### Origin of the Being Called Magnate

In the year before the nigh-total disappearance of the Technarche, most of the lowest Magi were forced to sacrifice themselves on the tomb of the one and only Magi emperor. Technarche records indicate that this revived the emperor, and may even have given him more Magn than most other Magi in history (not including his already huge amounts of Magn). After this, the emperor did some sort of dark ritual using the lives of the rest of the Magi, which is thought to have been able to change who the cosmos picked to receive the power of the Magnate.

On the eve of the final hour of the final day of the final month of the final kosmic year in interaction alpha, almost every Technarchemekkane in the Technarche had their souls magically severed by the power of the Magi emperor through the medium of their hope to become the Magnate and the actual Magnate prophecy.
The collected power, which must have been magnitudes more than even the Puteus Mover was supposedly given, started to funnel into the emperor. However, some force of Magnatism significance (common theories include forces such as the sentience of the Kosmos from Magnatism myth, the Puteus Mover, or Cabastis K-2) presumably started to fear for its own existence, and ripped away the stream of power, channeling the majority of it into themselves.

The body of the emperor and some of his chosen disciples still swelled with unimaginable amounts of Magn, but the ritual had been weakened by the intervention of the kosmic force. Much of the Magn spilled out in physical form, transforming the emperor's disciples into gigantic worms of destruction, and the emperor himself into the worm known as the Magnate. Even weakened as they were, the worms literally carved tunnels into the Superway from their capital planet (location known to very few) towards Mechanos Treachery. Unfortunately, the betrayer who stole their power also blocked them from entering into the ring, leaving them circling in a sort of limbo as the only occupants of Mecahnos Fraud, eternally trying to enter the ninth ring.

# Glossary of Definitions

## Civilization Classes

Monheliocratic class: A term for civilizations that control over or in only one solar system

Oligheliocratic class: A term for civilizations that have control over or in a small number of solar systems. Typically the number of these is 5 or less systems.

Myriheliocratic class: A term for civilizations that have control over or in many solar systems. Typically this number is six or more systems.

Subcosmocratic class: A term for civilizations that control significant portions of galaxies.

Cosmocratic class: A term for civilizations that control a galaxy. Very few of these exist, as they almost always require a method of transport of communication that exceeds the speed of light

Bicosmocratic class: A term for civilizations that control two galaxies. This exceedingly rare title has been given out so few times that you can count the recipient civilizations on one hand.

## Оүдн**ү**үхн Terms

The ENNOIA: The great simulation mind that runs off of the gathered processing power of the OYAHYYXH. Its goal is to be able to have a universe in and of itself where the word of the OYAHYYXH is law.

The anarhumic: The independent minds of the Oraminary whose job it is to interact with everything in every possible way, trying new things in an effort to gather data to simulate within the ennois. Since physical laws are most likely of smaller importance within the ENNOIA, the main goal of the ANAAHMYIC is to interact with sentient beings or other life. The ANAAHMYIC are allowed to interface with the disabled parts of the ENNOIA to host themselves, and to deposit simulation data.

The caz: The independent minds split off from the mass mind of the OYAMYYXH so that it can have outside input. They do not exist anywhere but as simulated consciousness within rare enable sections of the ENNOIA.

## Supremacy Terms

Archon: The name of the most powerful government officials of the supremacy. They do things such as decide policy, run the Mur (including the dynamfylak and Omnidialect), and decide the tactics of the Supremacy's armies. There are typically only around five thousand a solar system.

High Archon: A status given to those archons who carry the most power of the Supremacy. Some of these archons make up the Sapien Council, others have the highest status in their systems, and some are traveling personages of extreme power (Ex: the Archons who travel through the Mist Fields).

Abettor: The class of government official below the Archon, typically numbering in the ten millions for a solar system of a couple hundred billion persons. They hold little personal powers, but the might of the Supremacy still gives their words more weight than the average human.

Combine: The social classes of the Supremacy. The highest one is dedicated to humans who descend from those that have done great deeds to help the Supremacy as a whole. The second combine is home to humans who have never opposed the Supremacy in any way, and those rare members of other species who have, or whose ancestors have, performed great deeds for the Supremacy. Only the top two combines are allowed to access the city of regopolis, which covers the entirety of the planet of the same name. Below the second combine is the other 5 combines, which contain people increasingly opposed to the Supremacy. It should be noted that, almost always, humans are in a higher combine than their counterparts from other species.

Regopolis: The capital city and planet of the Supremacy. The city covers the entirety of the surface of the planet, and far into the crust also. Only the top two combines are even allowed to enter here.

Sapien Council: The ruling body of the supremacy composed of some of the more politically-minded High Archons. The council meets every 25 kosmic years in the city of regopolis, and decides the major policies and reevaluates the goals of the Supremacy. Each member of the council is allowed to chance minor policy just by asking it to be done.

## Miscellaneous Terms

Omnidialect temporal mindstem implantation

The Omnidialect is maintained by bouncing the information signal for the language around the interior of Mur, slowly being affected by the temporal distention of Cabastis K-2's gravity and going into the past. This continues until it reaches before the Supremacy construction of Mur, where the signal is released into the Kosmos. As an effect of this, anyone who gathers their resolve and makes a decision to learn the language will find that they actually already learned it in their past.

#### Dimensions of Magnate, the Fall of a Civilization

The length of the worm is around 2,869,020 solar radiuses. Also known as about a trillion (1,240,277,346,000) miles. Don't worry—the worm is only about 4000 miles wide. Light takes 69 minutes to travel from one end to the other if it is stretched out.

Cabastis K-1

The original supermassive black hole at the center of the Descendant galaxy that formed through natural processes. Obliterated in kosmic year one alpha.

#### Puteus $\Delta$

The original supermassive black hole at the center of the Macrolysis galaxy. This black hole was formed through the deliberate collapse of a giant star by an unknown entity, then the insertion of tens of thousands of solar systems into the resulting black hole by presumably the same entity. Obliterated in kosmic year one alpha.

#### Technarchemekkane

The term for a member of the Technarche species. It also can be used for a member of the Technarche civilization, which is usually one and the same as the other definition.

#### Puteus Mover

The scholarly name assigned to a theorized figure of immense power from the Macrolysis galaxy, as evidenced by lack of evidence in Technarche records. The Technarche records concerning it are completely gone in a way only seen elsewhere in the redirection of the Macrolysis galaxy and Operator Prime

#### Magi Emperor

One of the only beings to guide the Technarche on his own, the Magi emperor was a Magi of immense power. It is thought that his descent was somehow related to the descent of the Puteus Mover. The emperor, extending his life through Magn, was able to live for a large portion of the period after the redirection of the Macrolysis galaxy, but before the creation of the Kosmos and Cabastis K-2. He was revived at the end of kosmic interaction alpha, but vanished soon after.

#### Demnerus

A theoretical Magi of immense power proposed by the Technarche's Mechanos prophecies. In the predictions from iteration alpha Technarchemekkane, He is said to control the will of the Kosmos, and reside inside the center of Cabastis K-2. Given these assertions, doubt is widely cast upon the veracity of Demnerus' powers. Interestingly, predictions of Demnerus far predate the rest of the Mechanos prophecies, with proto-versions appearing as early as in the kosmic iteration alpha prime after the actions of the Puteus Mover. In these, he is described as living inside Puteus  $\Delta$ , and only controls the Macrolysis galaxy. This starts to change more nearing the collision of the Macrolysis and Descendant galaxies, where these predictions transfer to the newer forms.